
History of Site Ownership 
The history of site ownership was compiled using the chain-of-title search, 
Brown’s Directory, PSC reports, and Sanborn Maps. A site ownership chronology 
is provided in Table 5-2.  

• The New Rochelle Gas Light Company was incorporated on July 2, 1863 
[Chain-of-Title]. The Chain of Title shows that New Rochelle Gas Light 
Company owned the property in 1863 and the 1868 Beers map shows that 
there is a gas works on the property.  

• In 1887, the New Rochelle Gas Works was operational at the “Little 
Center” (later called Centre Street, then Cedar Street) location [Brown’s 
Directory].  

• The company became known as the New Rochelle Gas and Fuel Company 
by 1889 [Brown’s Directory].  

• The 1892 Sanborn Map indicates that the site was operated by the 
American Gas Company of New Rochelle, New York, although Brown’s 
Directory continued to indicate that the plant was operated by the New 
Rochelle Gas and Fuel Company through 1899 [Chain-of- Title, Sanborn 
Map, 1892 and Brown’s Directory]. The MGP operated only on the 
western half of the block along Centre (now Cedar) Street. The eastern 
half of the block along River Street was either residential or undeveloped. 

• On March 30, 1899, the New Rochelle Gas and Fuel Company was 
consolidated with the New York Suburban Gas Company, a consolidation 
of a number of other companies incorporated on March 9, 1899 [PSC 
Reports and Brown’s Directory].  

• On December 1, 1900, the New York Suburban Gas Company merged 
into the Westchester Lighting Company [PSC Reports and Brown’s 
Directory].  

• The 1911 Sanborn Map indicates the gas plant structures were still present 
on the property and the site was being used for storage by the Westchester 
Lighting Company [Sanborn Map, 1911].  

• By 1931, Westchester Lighting Company expanded the property further 
east to include the one parcel adjacent to River Street. 

• In 1951, the former MGP site is still owned by the Westchester Lighting 
Company [Sanborn Maps]. In 1951 the Westchester Lighting Company 
was fully merged into Con Edison as the Westchester Division [Brown’s 
Directory].  



• In 1953, Con Edison sold the property to R.E.C. Realty Corp [Chain-of-
Title]. 

A Con Edison real estate record from 1970 (amended through 1980) indicated that 
Con Edison purchased a parcel of land from the City of New Rochelle in 1969. 
This property, Section 1, Block 251, Lot 30 was supposed to be the location of a 
gas distribution plant that was in service. As far as it can be discerned from 
available records, this property was not associated with the former MGP site, 
although the Sanborn Maps that cover the former MGP site area do not extend 
this far to the southeast. 

 





















Block Lot Former 
Lot(s) Utility Owner Purchased Sold Current Owner Purchased Other Industrial Activity

New Rochelle Gas Light Company 7/7/1863 4/2/1866

Westchester Lighting Company              7/12/1904
New York and Westchester Lighting 
Company

7/12/1904 10/20/1904

Merger: Westchester Lighting 
Company with New York and 
Weshester Lighting

10/20/1904 ______

Consolidated Edison Company of 
New York Inc.

______ 9/10/1953

Westchester Lighting Company 6/27/1924 & 
6/28/1924

______

Consolidated Edison Company of 
New York Inc.

______ 9/10/1953

Comments: Tax lots 19 and 39 merged prior to 9/10/1953.  NYSDOT appropriated part of property in 1968. 

Table 5-2               Site Ownership Summary - New Rochelle (Cedar Street Site), New York

Donnybrook Realty Corp. 8/17/1992 United Enterprises
Estree Co
Tristar Automotive Group, 
Inc.

Donnybrook Realty Corp. 8/17/1992 United Enterprises
Estree Co
Tristar Automotive Group, 
Inc.

247 15 19 (old 40 
& 41)

247 15 39 (old 47)
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